REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 143-03

ATTACHMENT C


Contract No. 06909: Debt Collection Services
This document contains the original solicitation and subsequent amendments of the Debt Collection Services. 
Debt Collection Services (06806, FORMERLY 06806CA)
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RPF Amendment # 1

		RFP  Reference #:

		06204



		Title:

		Debt Collection Services



		Amendment number:

		1



		Date issued:

		04/21/05





This RFP is amended as follows:


		Purpose:

		The purpose of this amendment is to add/change/clarify requirements for the Debt Collection Services (please refer to page 2 of the amendment for details).



		

		All other Terms, Conditions, and Specifications remain unchanged.






		Attachments:

		Attachment A





		Previously scheduled opening date and time

		

		New opening date and time



		04/21/05

5.00 pm PST

		

		04/21/05

5.00 pm PST



		

		

		



		Aleksey Belov, Contract Consultant

		

		04/21/05





Amended items:

1)  Page 8, Section 2, Statement of Work, Specifications, response to the statement of work will be at a length of one (1) page or less per category description.


Example:
-- Response to In State Regular Collection Services will be one (1) page or less.


-- Response to In State Legal Collection Services will be one (1) page or less.


-- ETC.


2)  Page 8, II Special Terms and Conditions, Contractor Qualifications and page 31 Attachment E, Personnel, requirement of "in-house attorneys" is revised to an "in-house attorney or an attorney network".

3)  Page 23, 16 Bid Evaluation/Award, formatting changes, G (References) and H (Policies and Procedures) shall be replaced by E (References) and F (Policies and Procedures).

4) Page 24, the following section of Washington State counties is removed from the RFP (having a branch physically located in the state of Washington is not a requirement for this RFP):

Indicate where physically   located branches in the state of Washington:


		Adams 

		

		Cowlitz

		

		Island

		

		Lincoln

		

		Skagit

		

		Walla Walla

		



		Asotin 

		

		Douglas

		

		Jefferson

		

		Mason

		

		Skamania

		

		Whatcom

		



		Benton

		

		Ferry

		

		King

		

		Okanogan

		

		Snohomish

		

		Whitman

		



		Chelan

		

		Franklin

		

		Kitsap

		

		Pacific

		

		Spokane

		

		Yakima

		



		Clallam

		

		Garfield

		

		Kittitas

		

		Pend Orielle

		

		Stevens

		

		



		Clark

		

		Grant

		

		Klikittat

		

		Pierce

		

		Thurston

		

		



		Columbia

		

		Grays Harbor

		

		Lewis

		

		San Juan

		

		Wahkiakum

		

		





5)  Questions and Answers document is included with amendment #1 as an Attachment A (please refer to page 3 of this document).

The end of the document


Attachment A


Questions and Answers


for RFP 06204


Attendees of the optional Pre-Bid Conference:  The CBE Group, OSI Collection Services, RMA, AllianceOne, Pioneer Credit, Drico Recovery, Fairway Collections, Evergreen Financial, CCV, YCCS, Rainier.


Questions submitted in writing by:  AllianceOne, NCO Financial Systems, Inc., Municipal Services Bureau, GC Services Limited Partnership, and West Asset Management.


Checklist has Statement of Work on it, would OSP like vendors to actually respond to the Statement of Work?


Yes, OSP would like all of the vendors to submit responses to the Statement of Work, but keep in concise and to the point.  This, Statement of Work, is a major part of the vendor's offer to the OSP in the provision of the required services.


Preferences for instate companies vs. out of state?


There are no preferences given to instate companies vs. out of state companies per current procurement rules and regulations.


CD inclusion in the bid is for pricing only?  No CD for the response, correct?


That is correct the CD is for pricing only.


SCOPE


(II, 2) – Please clarify as to whether a vendor may only propose on one category of accounts or whether a vendor must propose on both categories of accounts to participate.


Answer:


As per the first paragraph of the Scope, page 7, bidder must bid for both categories.


Estimated Usage: 


In Section 5 Scope, Item A. Estimated Usage Can the State provide the current volume assigned under Category 1 and Category 2?  


Answer:


Category 1


		Usage 2001 

		Usage 2002 

		Usage 2003 

		Usage 2004 



		$      535,935.00 

		$      703,159.00 

		$      635,700.00 

		$      479,620.00 





Total spend between the years of 2001 and 2004 is: $2,354,414

Total reported spend on the contract for the year 2004 is $479,620.


Specific agencies with spend in the year 2004 of over $20,000.00 or more are:


		Entity




		Spend for 2004






		Political Subs and non-profits

		$35,999.00



		Spokane Community College-Dist 17

		$28,816.00



		Department of Transportation

		$61,910.00



		Labor and Industries

		$98,526.00



		Health Care Authority

		$102,355.00



		Department of Revenue

		$45,507.00



		

		





Category 2


		Usage 2001 

		Usage 2002 

		Usage 2003 

		Usage 2004 



		$      379,710.00 

		$      335,333.00 

		$      461,860.00 

		$      214,512.00 





Total for the contract between year 2001 and 2004 is:  $1,391,415.00

Total reported spend on the contract for the year 2004 is $215,190.00

Specific agencies with spend in the year 2004 of over $10,000.00 or more:


		Department of Transportation

		$12,251.00



		Department of Licensing

		$159,158.00



		Political Subs and non-profits

		$215,190.00





Estimated usage based on average historical data should be: $936,626.75 


588,603.50+348,023.25


Does the State expect an increase in volume assigned under the new contract?


We anticipate it to maintain at the same rate, growth could be facilitated by the vendor in educating agencies of the contract and services provided under the contract.


Average balance for an account referred?


OSP does not track that type of data.


Is the quoted dollar figures referred amount of fees or amounts paid out to the agencies?


The quoted dollar figures are the amounts that were paid out to the agencies by the providers.


 (I, 5, C) – Please provide the total number of State agencies (or an estimate thereof) that are currently placing accounts under the existing contracts.


Answer:


Category 1 -- 04198 Collection Agency Services


Administrator for the courts


Office of Public Defense


Econ and Revenue Forecast Council


State Health Care Authority


State Lottery Commission


Department of Retirement Systems


Department of Revenue


Washington State Patrol


Department of Labor and Industries


Department of Health


Higher Education Coordinating Board


Western Washington University


Department of Transportation


Department of Ecology


Department of Fish and Wildlife


Department of Natural Resources


Department of Agriculture


Department of Employment Security


Pierce College


Columbia Basin Community College


Green River Community College


Olympic College


Spokane Community College-Dist 17


Tacoma Community College


Walla Walla Community College


Wenatchee Valley College


Yakima Valley College


Renton Technical College


Bellingham Technical College


Clover Park Technical College


Political Subs and non-profits  $479,620.00


Category 2 --04398 NSF Check Collection Services:


Liquor Control Board


Labor and Industries


Department of Licensing


Department of Health


Department of Transportation


Department of Ecology


Parks and Recreation Commission


State Convention and Trade Center


Pierce College


Columbia Collections Services


Green River Community College


Olympic College


Tacoma Community College


Yakima Valley College


Bellingham Technical College


Political Subs and Non-Profits for the year of 2004 $215,190.00


(General) - For each of the State’s current vendors, please provide the following for each of the last three years:


Number and dollar amount of account referrals by major debt type or agency


Actual commissionable collections by major debt type or agency


Actual fees paid by major debt type or agency


Batched liquidation percentages by debt type or agency if available.


All of this information is not compiled nor organized electronically for easy access and release, but any of the vendors are welcome to request an access to the files and search through the information.


(General) – Are the historic placements during the last contract year a reasonable estimate of the estimated on-going placement volumes major debt type?


This is the best estimate that could be provided based on historical data.  It is reasonable to assume that the volume will maintain at the same rate, but as any estimate it is just a guess supported by historical data.


(General) - What is the average age and balance of account by major debt type or agency for the primary agencies currently placing accounts?


It varies from account to account and department to department, OSP does not track nor has a readily available access to such information.


(General) - Will there be a backlog of accounts placed under the new contract?  If so, what is the estimated number and dollar amount by major debt type or agency?  By age ranges of less than 1 year old, 1-2 years old, 2-3 years old, 3+ years old?


It is reasonable to assume that if the accounts are not near its collections that these accounts would be transferred from the old vendor to the new one, however, if the accounts are near collection than these accounts most likely shall remain with the old vendor.  Once again OSP does not track that information.


Contract Type: 


Purchasers:  


In Section 5 Scope, Item C. Purchasers can the State the number of state agencies utilizing the current contract?  


Answer:


Category 1:


17 agencies are reported to currently use the services provided under contract 04198.  That is not counting local government, Higher Education and Political Sub with non-profits.


Category 2:


8 agencies are reported to currently use the services provided under contract 04398.  That is not counting local government, Higher Education and Political Sub with non-profits.


WSPC and Higher Education: 


(Attachment A) – Will preference be given to a vendor who accepts placements from all political subdivisions of the WSPC and DASCPP/ORCPP?


There will be no preference, because WSPC is one of the users that shall be accommodated in the resulting contract, just like all of the state agencies.


(I, 5, D) – Are you aware if the WSPC and Higher Education agencies anticipate using the state contract?


There are some, which were covered above.


Term: 


Potential users of this contract:  


SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS


CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATIONS

Under the Special Terms and Conditions, Item 1.g) the second bullet, will an attorney network used by the corporation suffice to satisfy this requirement?


Please see Amendment # 1 for the RFP 06204.


Clarification:  "must have ability to run collections in all 50 states"?


Yes that is a requirement; however we don't have any procedures in place on how one would achieve this within other states.  The collections have to be within the legal and ethical boundaries of the state the collection being collected and state of Washington.


Does one have to be licensed in every state?


If that is a requirement to do collections in that specific state.


Statement of Work


Specifications


Physically located offices/branches in state required?


No, but the company has to be able to provide services in the state of Washington and other 50 states.


Category 1 – Collection Services


Contractor’s Representative c) requires designee to be available 8:00 a.m. to 5 p.m. Pacific Time; can the available individuals be a collector in the absence of the company’s normal designee? (page 21 in the RFP)


I believe the question was, to rephrase it, if the regular representative (designee used in the question above) is not available, because he/she is on vacation, sick, etc., the designee should be available in that period of time during the hours of 8am and 5pm.


Excerpt out of the text:  Availability:  Representative(s), or designee(s), shall be available during normal working hours (Monday through Friday, 8AM to 5PM Pacific Time) and return customer’s call by the next business day.


Section 2 of the Special Terms and Conditions, Statement of Work, can the State provide a list of designated Special Assistant Attorney Generals by the State’s Office of Attorney General?


The status of Special Assistant Attorney General is to be requested from, by the attorney (s) of the company that has one the bid, directly from the Attorney Generals Office.  Contact information is:


Howard Fischer, Sr. AAG 
Office of the Attorney General 
5th Floor, Highways-Licenses Bldg. 
1125 Washington St. SE 
P. O. Box 40100 
Olympia, WA 98504-0100 
Ph. (360) 586-2789 
Fax (360) 664-0662

In State Regular Collection Service


(General) – Where a single debtor has multiple debts potentially with different agencies, can notifications include all debt types or must separate mailings and phone communications be made with respect to each debt type?

This shall be determined by the agency requesting services from the vendor.  However, per Minimum Debt section, page 11 of the RFP, multiple debts of one debtor shall be considered one debt to attain minimum.  So if there, as per the statement mentioned above, if multiple debts are too small individually to meet the minimum, they shall be consolidated, but if they are over minimum, communications with the debtor on various debts he owes to the state of Washington shall be determined by the agency.


In State Legal Collection Services


What amount of in state legal is currently outsourced?


Answer:  


AllienceOne 


Ok, this is what I came up with.  In 2004 we had 1073 legal state accounts.  The total assigned amount was $783,761.75.  I hope this is what your looking for if not please let me know. 


OSI has none for the year 2004.


Out of State Regular Collection Service


(II, 2) – Please provide the number of accounts in each Category where in-state and out-of-state suit was filed by the collection agency in their name during each of the last three years.


OSP does not track such information, it is covered on a user agency level.


Out of State Legal Collection Services


Item 2, Category 1, Out of State Legal Collection Services, there is a requirement that all legal work be done by attorneys designated a Special Assistant Attorney General by the Washington State Office of the Attorney General.  Is there a list of attorneys that meet these criteria that the State can make available?


The status of Special Assistant Attorney General is to be requested from, by the attorney (s) of the company that has one the bid, directly from the Attorney Generals Office.  Contact information is:


Howard Fischer, Sr. AAG 
Office of the Attorney General 
5th Floor, Highways-Licenses Bldg. 
1125 Washington St. SE 
P. O. Box 40100 
Olympia, WA 98504-0100 
Ph. (360) 586-2789 
Fax (360) 664-0662

What amount of out of state legal is currently outsourced?


OSP does not keep track of this information.


Category 2 – NSF Check Collection


Regular NSF Collections 


(II, Cat 2, Regular NSF) - How many State agencies currently prefer vendor to submit collection notices on the agency's letterhead?  In the event an agency elects this approach, will the agency provide the letter stock?  


OSP does not keep track of this information.


Would agencies ask vendors to send an additional "pre-notice"?  (page 10 of the RFP).  Could companies charge for that?  Is it a separate fee?


There are no separate fees with this contract, the pricing is all inclusive.  The meaning of that paragraph is that normally the vendor would send out a notice, unless the agency already did so and wave that requirement.


Legal NSF Collections


Ordering Services


(I, 5, D) – Does each participating agency place its own accounts for collections or does that State have a means for consolidating placements for multiple agencies?  What are the total number of placement files and formats currently being used?


Each participating agency places their own accounts with the vendor.


(Attachment B) – The examples assume accounts that are going into collections for the first time.  Will there be any accounts placed under an awarded contract that have previously been placed with an outside collection agency?


Potentially yes, there might be accounts that have been previously placed with an outside agency, but that depends on an agency by agency case.


(II, Ordering Services) - Will vendor be authorized to contact State agencies in order to offer our services to them under this contract?


Vendors are encouraged to make agencies aware of their contract with OSP, however each agency should be approached accordingly with their policies on solicitation, etc.

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING 


Is the Letter of Understanding optional?  Would the State prefer that agencies utilize this option?


Letter of understanding is only in case the agency wants to remit the full amount of debt and passes the costs (the fees which would be normally deducted from the original account) onto the debtor to pay.


Can the State clarify how the Additional Charges relates to the Letter of Understanding?


Contractor shall not add any of their own collection charges, aside from what is allowed per Additional Charges definitions.  However, if the agency requesting services would like for the debtor to incur the cost of collection, they would complete a letter of understanding with the vendor.


What percentage of agencies uses this option?


There are some that do it on a case to case basis, but we do not track this information.


Only for category 1


ACKNOWLEDGEMENT


MINIMUM DEBT


Category 1


Category 2


CONSULTING/TRAINING


USE


ADDITIONAL CHARGES


Only for Category 1 


RETURNING ACCOUNTS


Category 2


WITHDRAWING OF ACCOUNTS


Category 1 only


How will the contractor know if a specific account was paid within 30 days of notification of withdrawal, since the contractor should receive a fee?


This will be part of communication protocol between the parties involved (agency and contractor).


ACCOUNT SUSPENSION


Category 1


Category 2


SETTLEMENTS


Category 1 


Category 2


ACCOUNT REDUCTION


Category 1


Category 2


NEGOTIATED PAYMENTS


Category 1


Category 2


CONTRACT TERMINATION


In Addition to Category 2


POSTING category 2 only


FLEXIBILITY


(General) – Will all State agencies place accounts electronically or will some accounts be manually placed or in hard-copy form?  If so, please provide an estimated number of such accounts?


Depends on each agency.


REVISED CODE OF WASHINGTON 19.16.500 AND 1982 C 65 S 1


Revised Code of Washington 19.16.500 AND 1982 C 65 S1 (a) does the licensing under this section for in-state collections require an office in the State? Can the State clarify the fees allowed an agency to charge under this section?  Are the fees added to the debt prior to submitting to the collection agency?


OSP recommends to the potential provider to seek the help of their legal department in the interpretation of the RCW above or any other statues of the state of Washington.


Second portion, about the fees added prior would depend on the arrangement between the vendor and an agency, mainly because of the fee structure, which might take place between the two entities.


What are the specific fees that would be allowed to collect under this RCW?


Please check in with your legal department or Washington State Attorney General's office for an interpretation of the RCW.


What types of fees can you add per the RCW?


Please clarify that with your attorney or Washington State Attorney General's office.


CONFIDENTIALITY


FOREIGN JUDGEMENTS


Bankruptcy 



PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS


PRICING AND ADJUSTMENTS


MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP


CONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE


Will there be audits, and are there procedures?


There might be auditing activities that could potentially happen, in this case the procedure would be provided by the agency requesting an audit.


Are there specific work standards that are required as minimum performance criteria?


Aside from what is asked in the RFP, there are some agencies that would have their specific requirements on performance.


Insurance


(II, 6) – Would a Commercial Crime insurance policy covering employee dishonesty meet the Fidelity Bond requirements?


Answer:


Fidelity Bond requirement for this particular contract remains the same, and may not be replaced by the Commercial Crime insurance, which is similar in nature, but lacks coverage for employee negligence, which Fidelity Bond covers.  There are also other differences* which were taken into consideration that made Fidelity Bond the choice for the Washington State Debt Collection Contract.


*  Though claims made under commercial crime coverage are often described as fidelity bond claims, and evolved out of a standard surety bond background, there are a number of differences between a crime coverage claim and a contract surety claim. In particular, notable differences exist in the following areas: (1) limits of liability; (2) singular vs. multiple claimants; (3) fixed vs. changing circumstances; and (4) limited vs. varied information sources. )


RETENTION OF RECORDS


CONTRACT ACTIVITY REPORTS


(General) – Please clarify that each agency placing accounts may define unique reporting and invoicing requirements.


Reporting -- Each agency would modify reports to their needs, since each agency does their fiscal tracking differently.


Billing -- each agency would modify billing to their needs, since each agency is governed by, in some case, different statutes, administrative rules, etc.


Fees


Category 1


(Attachment B) – Please clarify if all of the Category 1 collection fees will be added on to the principal debt and collected from the debtor versus being paid from collections of the principal debt.


All of the fees shall be added onto the principle debt only if the agency chooses to exercise the option, which is given under the RCW  19.16.500 and is mentioned under the section titled Letter of Understanding on page 11 of the RFP.


Will there be potentially more than one rate (some will charge debtor for collection?)?


There rate would still be the same, only instead of being deducted from the amount put up for collection, it will be added to the collection amount to be paid by the debtor.


Category 2


REMITTANCE


Category 1:


Category 2


On page 19, Category 2.  100% of the check face amount + fees go to the sate?


A 100% of the face value of the check + collection fee amount indicated in the Attachment C would go to the state; the rest of the amount collected would remain with the contractor.


PAYMENTS DIRECT TO STATE


Category 1


Category 2


On-line Access to Accounts


(II, 9, On-Line Access to Accounts) - How many State agencies currently require access to contractor’s system?  Please elaborate on "User agencies also require updated capability to respond to questions or disputes on accounts."  Is the State requesting write-access to the vendor's database?  


OSP does not track that type of activity.


What is meant under the " User agencies also require updated capability to respond to questions or disputes on accounts" is the ability to look up an up-to-date progress on a specific account through an online means, such as the internet webpage that would allow you to look up an account.  The state does not request a write-access to the vendor database, which is, of course, different from an ability to submit your account online through an interface webpage that interacts with the vendor's database.


AUTHORIZED FEES


Only Category 2


INTEREST

Category 1


Category 2


PURCHASES BY NONPROFIT CORPORATIONS


REFERENCES


CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIVE


BID RESPONSE DOCUMENTS


Under the Bid Response Documents please clarify the number of responses necessary.  Is it the intent to receive one (1) original and two (2) copies?


There should be one document clearly identified as an original document, and three copies of that original document.


BIDDER COMPLIANCE


EVALUATION CONFERENCE


BID EVALUATION / AWARD


(II, 16) – Please clarify whether the State intends to award a single contract covering both Category 1 and Category 2 accounts or a single contract covering Category 1 accounts and another single contract covering Category 2 accounts.


As per statements on page 7, Scope, as well as on page 22, Bid Evaluation Award, the state is planning on awarding both categories to a single vendor.


Please clarify under the Bid Evaluation/Award what are the maximum number of pages allowed for the response including all the attachments and any other parts of the response.


The response should be one page or less per section, with Policies and Procedures to be covered, however, there could be attachments included in the bid, which are addressed by reference in the response.  The same structure is expected from the Statement of Work portion of the RFP, where for each section within each category, such as Category 1--Collection Services--In State Regular Collection Service, etc. one page or less response shall be used as a format.


Could attachments be recreated?


Sure, as long as they are in the same format and order as the original.


Financial (Cost).  Maximum available 145 pts.


Category 1


Category 2


Automation.  Maximum available 16 pts.


Categories 1 and 2


Experience and Logistics.  Maximum available 30 pts.


Categories 1 and 2


Personnel.  Maximum available 30 pts.


Category 1


Suite/Garnishment process on the attachment?


We want to know that you have one, and that would be covered in the Statement of Work.


References.  Maximum available 6 pts.


http://www.ga.wa.gov/PCA/Forms/REFERENCES.doc

Policies and Procedures.  Maximum available 20 pts.


Who are the current collection agencies used by the State? 


Answer:


Please see the CCI at the following link location 


04198 http://www.ga.wa.gov/pca/contract/04198c.doc

04398 http://www.ga.wa.gov/pca/contract/04398c.doc

What are the fee rates under the current contract with the State?


Answer:  Please see the CCI at the locations mentioned in question #5.


What are the recovery rates from the current agencies?  What is the State’s expected recovery rate?


OSP does not track that information.


What is the age of the debt at the time of placement?   


This shall vary on a case by case basis.


Can the State provide this by agencies utilizing the current contract?


Please look at the beginning of Q and A for the information requested above.


What are your likes and dislikes with the current agency(s)?


There has not been any complains about any of the current vendors that were presented to the current contract administrator on behalf of any state agency.


How does the state procurement let state agencies know about services provided under this contract?


We have a webpage that allows all state agencies to search all of our contracts by keyword, contract number, etc.  Also our Annual Vendor Show teaches agencies, as well as brings them together with the vendors on the contract, about our contracts and services.


Does the vendor have to have a branch in the State of Washington to provide services to the state?


No, the vendor has to have an ability to provide collections services in the state of Washington, but does not have to have a physical location within the state of Washington.


The end of the document


Amendment #1 RFP 06204
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RPF Amendment # 2

		RFP  Reference #:

		06204



		Title:

		Debt Collection Services



		Amendment number:

		2



		Date issued:

		04/22/05





This RFP is amended as follows:


		Purpose:

		The purpose of this amendment is to update the document with revised opening date and time on the Amendment 1, and to change/clarify estimated usage amount on the RFP 06204 (please refer to page 2 for details).



		

		All other Terms, Conditions, and Specifications remain unchanged.






		Attachments:

		





		Previously scheduled opening date and time

		

		New opening date and time



		04/21/05


5.00 pm PST

		

		05/16/05


2.00 pm PST



		

		

		



		Aleksey Belov, Contract Consultant

		

		04/22/05





Amended items:


Page 1, Amendment 1, Previously Scheduled Opening Date and New Opening Date are changed from 4/21/05 5.00 pm PST to 05/16/05 2.00 pm PST.

Page 7, RFP, 5 Scope, Estimated Usage, revised dollar amount for the initial term of the contract, which is 24 months, is $1,873,253.50.


The end of the document

RPF Amendment # 1

		RFP  Reference #:

		06204



		Title:

		Debt Collection Services



		Amendment number:

		1



		Date issued:

		04/21/05





This RFP is amended as follows:


		Purpose:

		The purpose of this amendment is to add/change/clarify requirements for the Debt Collection Services (please refer to page 4 of the amendment for details).



		

		All other Terms, Conditions, and Specifications remain unchanged.






		Attachments:

		Attachment A





		Previously scheduled opening date and time

		

		New opening date and time



		04/21/05

5.00 pm PST

		

		04/21/05

5.00 pm PST



		

		

		



		Aleksey Belov, Contract Consultant

		

		04/21/05





Amended items:

1)  Page 8, Section 2, Statement of Work, Specifications, response to the statement of work will be at a length of one (1) page or less per category description.


Example:
-- Response to In State Regular Collection Services will be one (1) page or less.


-- Response to In State Legal Collection Services will be one (1) page or less.


-- ETC.


2)  Page 8, II Special Terms and Conditions, Contractor Qualifications and page 31 Attachment E, Personnel, requirement of "in-house attorneys" is revised to an "in-house attorney or an attorney network".

3)  Page 23, 16 Bid Evaluation/Award, formatting changes, G (References) and H (Policies and Procedures) shall be replaced by E (References) and F (Policies and Procedures).

4) Page 24, the following section of Washington State counties is removed from the RFP (having a branch physically located in the state of Washington is not a requirement for this RFP):

Indicate where physically   located branches in the state of Washington:


		Adams 

		

		Cowlitz

		

		Island

		

		Lincoln

		

		Skagit

		

		Walla Walla

		



		Asotin 

		

		Douglas

		

		Jefferson

		

		Mason

		

		Skamania

		

		Whatcom

		



		Benton

		

		Ferry

		

		King

		

		Okanogan

		

		Snohomish

		

		Whitman

		



		Chelan

		

		Franklin

		

		Kitsap

		

		Pacific

		

		Spokane

		

		Yakima

		



		Clallam

		

		Garfield

		

		Kittitas

		

		Pend Orielle

		

		Stevens

		

		



		Clark

		

		Grant

		

		Klikittat

		

		Pierce

		

		Thurston

		

		



		Columbia

		

		Grays Harbor

		

		Lewis

		

		San Juan

		

		Wahkiakum

		

		





5)  Questions and Answers document is included with amendment #1 as an Attachment A (please refer to page 3 of this document).

The end of the document


Attachment A


Questions and Answers


for RFP 06204


Attendees of the optional Pre-Bid Conference:  The CBE Group, OSI Collection Services, RMA, AllianceOne, Pioneer Credit, Drico Recovery, Fairway Collections, Evergreen Financial, CCV, YCCS, Rainier.


Questions submitted in writing by:  AllianceOne, NCO Financial Systems, Inc., Municipal Services Bureau, GC Services Limited Partnership, and West Asset Management.


Checklist has Statement of Work on it, would OSP like vendors to actually respond to the Statement of Work?


Yes, OSP would like all of the vendors to submit responses to the Statement of Work, but keep in concise and to the point.  This, Statement of Work, is a major part of the vendor's offer to the OSP in the provision of the required services.


Preferences for instate companies vs. out of state?


There are no preferences given to instate companies vs. out of state companies per current procurement rules and regulations.


CD inclusion in the bid is for pricing only?  No CD for the response, correct?


That is correct the CD is for pricing only.


SCOPE


(II, 2) – Please clarify as to whether a vendor may only propose on one category of accounts or whether a vendor must propose on both categories of accounts to participate.


Answer:


As per the first paragraph of the Scope, page 7, bidder must bid for both categories.


Estimated Usage: 


In Section 5 Scope, Item A. Estimated Usage Can the State provide the current volume assigned under Category 1 and Category 2?  


Answer:


Category 1


		Usage 2001 

		Usage 2002 

		Usage 2003 

		Usage 2004 



		$      535,935.00 

		$      703,159.00 

		$      635,700.00 

		$      479,620.00 





Total spend between the years of 2001 and 2004 is: $2,354,414

Total reported spend on the contract for the year 2004 is $479,620.


Specific agencies with spend in the year 2004 of over $20,000.00 or more are:


		Entity




		Spend for 2004






		Political Subs and non-profits

		$35,999.00



		Spokane Community College-Dist 17

		$28,816.00



		Department of Transportation

		$61,910.00



		Labor and Industries

		$98,526.00



		Health Care Authority

		$102,355.00



		Department of Revenue

		$45,507.00



		

		





Category 2


		Usage 2001 

		Usage 2002 

		Usage 2003 

		Usage 2004 



		$      379,710.00 

		$      335,333.00 

		$      461,860.00 

		$      214,512.00 





Total for the contract between year 2001 and 2004 is:  $1,391,415.00

Total reported spend on the contract for the year 2004 is $215,190.00

Specific agencies with spend in the year 2004 of over $10,000.00 or more:


		Department of Transportation

		$12,251.00



		Department of Licensing

		$159,158.00



		Political Subs and non-profits

		$215,190.00





Estimated usage based on average historical data should be: $936,626.75 


588,603.50+348,023.25


Does the State expect an increase in volume assigned under the new contract?


We anticipate it to maintain at the same rate, growth could be facilitated by the vendor in educating agencies of the contract and services provided under the contract.


Average balance for an account referred?


OSP does not track that type of data.


Is the quoted dollar figures referred amount of fees or amounts paid out to the agencies?


The quoted dollar figures are the amounts that were paid out to the agencies by the providers.


 (I, 5, C) – Please provide the total number of State agencies (or an estimate thereof) that are currently placing accounts under the existing contracts.


Answer:


Category 1 -- 04198 Collection Agency Services


Administrator for the courts


Office of Public Defense


Econ and Revenue Forecast Council


State Health Care Authority


State Lottery Commission


Department of Retirement Systems


Department of Revenue


Washington State Patrol


Department of Labor and Industries


Department of Health


Higher Education Coordinating Board


Western Washington University


Department of Transportation


Department of Ecology


Department of Fish and Wildlife


Department of Natural Resources


Department of Agriculture


Department of Employment Security


Pierce College


Columbia Basin Community College


Green River Community College


Olympic College


Spokane Community College-Dist 17


Tacoma Community College


Walla Walla Community College


Wenatchee Valley College


Yakima Valley College


Renton Technical College


Bellingham Technical College


Clover Park Technical College


Political Subs and non-profits  $479,620.00


Category 2 --04398 NSF Check Collection Services:


Liquor Control Board


Labor and Industries


Department of Licensing


Department of Health


Department of Transportation


Department of Ecology


Parks and Recreation Commission


State Convention and Trade Center


Pierce College


Columbia Collections Services


Green River Community College


Olympic College


Tacoma Community College


Yakima Valley College


Bellingham Technical College


Political Subs and Non-Profits for the year of 2004 $215,190.00


(General) - For each of the State’s current vendors, please provide the following for each of the last three years:


Number and dollar amount of account referrals by major debt type or agency


Actual commissionable collections by major debt type or agency


Actual fees paid by major debt type or agency


Batched liquidation percentages by debt type or agency if available.


All of this information is not compiled nor organized electronically for easy access and release, but any of the vendors are welcome to request an access to the files and search through the information.


(General) – Are the historic placements during the last contract year a reasonable estimate of the estimated on-going placement volumes major debt type?


This is the best estimate that could be provided based on historical data.  It is reasonable to assume that the volume will maintain at the same rate, but as any estimate it is just a guess supported by historical data.


(General) - What is the average age and balance of account by major debt type or agency for the primary agencies currently placing accounts?


It varies from account to account and department to department, OSP does not track nor has a readily available access to such information.


(General) - Will there be a backlog of accounts placed under the new contract?  If so, what is the estimated number and dollar amount by major debt type or agency?  By age ranges of less than 1 year old, 1-2 years old, 2-3 years old, 3+ years old?


It is reasonable to assume that if the accounts are not near its collections that these accounts would be transferred from the old vendor to the new one, however, if the accounts are near collection than these accounts most likely shall remain with the old vendor.  Once again OSP does not track that information.


Contract Type: 


Purchasers:  


In Section 5 Scope, Item C. Purchasers can the State the number of state agencies utilizing the current contract?  


Answer:


Category 1:


17 agencies are reported to currently use the services provided under contract 04198.  That is not counting local government, Higher Education and Political Sub with non-profits.


Category 2:


8 agencies are reported to currently use the services provided under contract 04398.  That is not counting local government, Higher Education and Political Sub with non-profits.


WSPC and Higher Education: 


(Attachment A) – Will preference be given to a vendor who accepts placements from all political subdivisions of the WSPC and DASCPP/ORCPP?


There will be no preference, because WSPC is one of the users that shall be accommodated in the resulting contract, just like all of the state agencies.


(I, 5, D) – Are you aware if the WSPC and Higher Education agencies anticipate using the state contract?


There are some, which were covered above.


Term: 


Potential users of this contract:  


SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS


CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATIONS

Under the Special Terms and Conditions, Item 1.g) the second bullet, will an attorney network used by the corporation suffice to satisfy this requirement?


Please see Amendment # 1 for the RFP 06204.


Clarification:  "must have ability to run collections in all 50 states"?


Yes that is a requirement; however we don't have any procedures in place on how one would achieve this within other states.  The collections have to be within the legal and ethical boundaries of the state the collection being collected and state of Washington.


Does one have to be licensed in every state?


If that is a requirement to do collections in that specific state.


Statement of Work


Specifications


Physically located offices/branches in state required?


No, but the company has to be able to provide services in the state of Washington and other 50 states.


Category 1 – Collection Services


Contractor’s Representative c) requires designee to be available 8:00 a.m. to 5 p.m. Pacific Time; can the available individuals be a collector in the absence of the company’s normal designee? (page 21 in the RFP)


I believe the question was, to rephrase it, if the regular representative (designee used in the question above) is not available, because he/she is on vacation, sick, etc., the designee should be available in that period of time during the hours of 8am and 5pm.


Excerpt out of the text:  Availability:  Representative(s), or designee(s), shall be available during normal working hours (Monday through Friday, 8AM to 5PM Pacific Time) and return customer’s call by the next business day.


Section 2 of the Special Terms and Conditions, Statement of Work, can the State provide a list of designated Special Assistant Attorney Generals by the State’s Office of Attorney General?


The status of Special Assistant Attorney General is to be requested from, by the attorney (s) of the company that has one the bid, directly from the Attorney Generals Office.  Contact information is:


Howard Fischer, Sr. AAG 
Office of the Attorney General 
5th Floor, Highways-Licenses Bldg. 
1125 Washington St. SE 
P. O. Box 40100 
Olympia, WA 98504-0100 
Ph. (360) 586-2789 
Fax (360) 664-0662

In State Regular Collection Service


(General) – Where a single debtor has multiple debts potentially with different agencies, can notifications include all debt types or must separate mailings and phone communications be made with respect to each debt type?

This shall be determined by the agency requesting services from the vendor.  However, per Minimum Debt section, page 11 of the RFP, multiple debts of one debtor shall be considered one debt to attain minimum.  So if there, as per the statement mentioned above, if multiple debts are too small individually to meet the minimum, they shall be consolidated, but if they are over minimum, communications with the debtor on various debts he owes to the state of Washington shall be determined by the agency.


In State Legal Collection Services


What amount of in state legal is currently outsourced?


Answer:  


AllienceOne 


Ok, this is what I came up with.  In 2004 we had 1073 legal state accounts.  The total assigned amount was $783,761.75.  I hope this is what your looking for if not please let me know. 


OSI has none for the year 2004.


Out of State Regular Collection Service


(II, 2) – Please provide the number of accounts in each Category where in-state and out-of-state suit was filed by the collection agency in their name during each of the last three years.


OSP does not track such information, it is covered on a user agency level.


Out of State Legal Collection Services


Item 2, Category 1, Out of State Legal Collection Services, there is a requirement that all legal work be done by attorneys designated a Special Assistant Attorney General by the Washington State Office of the Attorney General.  Is there a list of attorneys that meet these criteria that the State can make available?


The status of Special Assistant Attorney General is to be requested from, by the attorney (s) of the company that has one the bid, directly from the Attorney Generals Office.  Contact information is:


Howard Fischer, Sr. AAG 
Office of the Attorney General 
5th Floor, Highways-Licenses Bldg. 
1125 Washington St. SE 
P. O. Box 40100 
Olympia, WA 98504-0100 
Ph. (360) 586-2789 
Fax (360) 664-0662

What amount of out of state legal is currently outsourced?


OSP does not keep track of this information.


Category 2 – NSF Check Collection


Regular NSF Collections 


(II, Cat 2, Regular NSF) - How many State agencies currently prefer vendor to submit collection notices on the agency's letterhead?  In the event an agency elects this approach, will the agency provide the letter stock?  


OSP does not keep track of this information.


Would agencies ask vendors to send an additional "pre-notice"?  (page 10 of the RFP).  Could companies charge for that?  Is it a separate fee?


There are no separate fees with this contract, the pricing is all inclusive.  The meaning of that paragraph is that normally the vendor would send out a notice, unless the agency already did so and wave that requirement.


Legal NSF Collections


Ordering Services


(I, 5, D) – Does each participating agency place its own accounts for collections or does that State have a means for consolidating placements for multiple agencies?  What are the total number of placement files and formats currently being used?


Each participating agency places their own accounts with the vendor.


(Attachment B) – The examples assume accounts that are going into collections for the first time.  Will there be any accounts placed under an awarded contract that have previously been placed with an outside collection agency?


Potentially yes, there might be accounts that have been previously placed with an outside agency, but that depends on an agency by agency case.


(II, Ordering Services) - Will vendor be authorized to contact State agencies in order to offer our services to them under this contract?


Vendors are encouraged to make agencies aware of their contract with OSP, however each agency should be approached accordingly with their policies on solicitation, etc.

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING 


Is the Letter of Understanding optional?  Would the State prefer that agencies utilize this option?


Letter of understanding is only in case the agency wants to remit the full amount of debt and passes the costs (the fees which would be normally deducted from the original account) onto the debtor to pay.


Can the State clarify how the Additional Charges relates to the Letter of Understanding?


Contractor shall not add any of their own collection charges, aside from what is allowed per Additional Charges definitions.  However, if the agency requesting services would like for the debtor to incur the cost of collection, they would complete a letter of understanding with the vendor.


What percentage of agencies uses this option?


There are some that do it on a case to case basis, but we do not track this information.


Only for category 1


ACKNOWLEDGEMENT


MINIMUM DEBT


Category 1


Category 2


CONSULTING/TRAINING


USE


ADDITIONAL CHARGES


Only for Category 1 


RETURNING ACCOUNTS


Category 2


WITHDRAWING OF ACCOUNTS


Category 1 only


How will the contractor know if a specific account was paid within 30 days of notification of withdrawal, since the contractor should receive a fee?


This will be part of communication protocol between the parties involved (agency and contractor).


ACCOUNT SUSPENSION


Category 1


Category 2


SETTLEMENTS


Category 1 


Category 2


ACCOUNT REDUCTION


Category 1


Category 2


NEGOTIATED PAYMENTS


Category 1


Category 2


CONTRACT TERMINATION


In Addition to Category 2


POSTING category 2 only


FLEXIBILITY


(General) – Will all State agencies place accounts electronically or will some accounts be manually placed or in hard-copy form?  If so, please provide an estimated number of such accounts?


Depends on each agency.


REVISED CODE OF WASHINGTON 19.16.500 AND 1982 C 65 S 1


Revised Code of Washington 19.16.500 AND 1982 C 65 S1 (a) does the licensing under this section for in-state collections require an office in the State? Can the State clarify the fees allowed an agency to charge under this section?  Are the fees added to the debt prior to submitting to the collection agency?


OSP recommends to the potential provider to seek the help of their legal department in the interpretation of the RCW above or any other statues of the state of Washington.


Second portion, about the fees added prior would depend on the arrangement between the vendor and an agency, mainly because of the fee structure, which might take place between the two entities.


What are the specific fees that would be allowed to collect under this RCW?


Please check in with your legal department or Washington State Attorney General's office for an interpretation of the RCW.


What types of fees can you add per the RCW?


Please clarify that with your attorney or Washington State Attorney General's office.


CONFIDENTIALITY


FOREIGN JUDGEMENTS


Bankruptcy 



PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS


PRICING AND ADJUSTMENTS


MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP


CONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE


Will there be audits, and are there procedures?


There might be auditing activities that could potentially happen, in this case the procedure would be provided by the agency requesting an audit.


Are there specific work standards that are required as minimum performance criteria?


Aside from what is asked in the RFP, there are some agencies that would have their specific requirements on performance.


Insurance


(II, 6) – Would a Commercial Crime insurance policy covering employee dishonesty meet the Fidelity Bond requirements?


Answer:


Fidelity Bond requirement for this particular contract remains the same, and may not be replaced by the Commercial Crime insurance, which is similar in nature, but lacks coverage for employee negligence, which Fidelity Bond covers.  There are also other differences* which were taken into consideration that made Fidelity Bond the choice for the Washington State Debt Collection Contract.


*  Though claims made under commercial crime coverage are often described as fidelity bond claims, and evolved out of a standard surety bond background, there are a number of differences between a crime coverage claim and a contract surety claim. In particular, notable differences exist in the following areas: (1) limits of liability; (2) singular vs. multiple claimants; (3) fixed vs. changing circumstances; and (4) limited vs. varied information sources. )


RETENTION OF RECORDS


CONTRACT ACTIVITY REPORTS


(General) – Please clarify that each agency placing accounts may define unique reporting and invoicing requirements.


Reporting -- Each agency would modify reports to their needs, since each agency does their fiscal tracking differently.


Billing -- each agency would modify billing to their needs, since each agency is governed by, in some case, different statutes, administrative rules, etc.


Fees


Category 1


(Attachment B) – Please clarify if all of the Category 1 collection fees will be added on to the principal debt and collected from the debtor versus being paid from collections of the principal debt.


All of the fees shall be added onto the principle debt only if the agency chooses to exercise the option, which is given under the RCW  19.16.500 and is mentioned under the section titled Letter of Understanding on page 11 of the RFP.


Will there be potentially more than one rate (some will charge debtor for collection?)?


There rate would still be the same, only instead of being deducted from the amount put up for collection, it will be added to the collection amount to be paid by the debtor.


Category 2


REMITTANCE


Category 1:


Category 2


On page 19, Category 2.  100% of the check face amount + fees go to the sate?


A 100% of the face value of the check + collection fee amount indicated in the Attachment C would go to the state; the rest of the amount collected would remain with the contractor.


PAYMENTS DIRECT TO STATE


Category 1


Category 2


On-line Access to Accounts


(II, 9, On-Line Access to Accounts) - How many State agencies currently require access to contractor’s system?  Please elaborate on "User agencies also require updated capability to respond to questions or disputes on accounts."  Is the State requesting write-access to the vendor's database?  


OSP does not track that type of activity.


What is meant under the " User agencies also require updated capability to respond to questions or disputes on accounts" is the ability to look up an up-to-date progress on a specific account through an online means, such as the internet webpage that would allow you to look up an account.  The state does not request a write-access to the vendor database, which is, of course, different from an ability to submit your account online through an interface webpage that interacts with the vendor's database.


AUTHORIZED FEES


Only Category 2


INTEREST

Category 1


Category 2


PURCHASES BY NONPROFIT CORPORATIONS


REFERENCES


CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIVE


BID RESPONSE DOCUMENTS


Under the Bid Response Documents please clarify the number of responses necessary.  Is it the intent to receive one (1) original and two (2) copies?


There should be one document clearly identified as an original document, and three copies of that original document.


BIDDER COMPLIANCE


EVALUATION CONFERENCE


BID EVALUATION / AWARD


(II, 16) – Please clarify whether the State intends to award a single contract covering both Category 1 and Category 2 accounts or a single contract covering Category 1 accounts and another single contract covering Category 2 accounts.


As per statements on page 7, Scope, as well as on page 22, Bid Evaluation Award, the state is planning on awarding both categories to a single vendor.


Please clarify under the Bid Evaluation/Award what are the maximum number of pages allowed for the response including all the attachments and any other parts of the response.


The response should be one page or less per section, with Policies and Procedures to be covered, however, there could be attachments included in the bid, which are addressed by reference in the response.  The same structure is expected from the Statement of Work portion of the RFP, where for each section within each category, such as Category 1--Collection Services--In State Regular Collection Service, etc. one page or less response shall be used as a format.


Could attachments be recreated?


Sure, as long as they are in the same format and order as the original.


Financial (Cost).  Maximum available 145 pts.


Category 1


Category 2


Automation.  Maximum available 16 pts.


Categories 1 and 2


Experience and Logistics.  Maximum available 30 pts.


Categories 1 and 2


Personnel.  Maximum available 30 pts.


Category 1


Suite/Garnishment process on the attachment?


We want to know that you have one, and that would be covered in the Statement of Work.


References.  Maximum available 6 pts.


http://www.ga.wa.gov/PCA/Forms/REFERENCES.doc

Policies and Procedures.  Maximum available 20 pts.


Who are the current collection agencies used by the State? 


Answer:


Please see the CCI at the following link location 


04198 http://www.ga.wa.gov/pca/contract/04198c.doc

04398 http://www.ga.wa.gov/pca/contract/04398c.doc

What are the fee rates under the current contract with the State?


Answer:  Please see the CCI at the locations mentioned in question #5.


What are the recovery rates from the current agencies?  What is the State’s expected recovery rate?


OSP does not track that information.


What is the age of the debt at the time of placement?   


This shall vary on a case by case basis.


Can the State provide this by agencies utilizing the current contract?


Please look at the beginning of Q and A for the information requested above.


What are your likes and dislikes with the current agency(s)?


There has not been any complains about any of the current vendors that were presented to the current contract administrator on behalf of any state agency.


How does the state procurement let state agencies know about services provided under this contract?


We have a webpage that allows all state agencies to search all of our contracts by keyword, contract number, etc.  Also our Annual Vendor Show teaches agencies, as well as brings them together with the vendors on the contract, about our contracts and services.


Does the vendor have to have a branch in the State of Washington to provide services to the state?


No, the vendor has to have an ability to provide collections services in the state of Washington, but does not have to have a physical location within the state of Washington.


The end of the document


Amendment #1 RFP 06204
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STATE OF WASHINGTON
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Department of General Administration


Office of State Procurement


210 11th Ave SW, Room 201 GA Building, P O Box 41017, Olympia, Washington 98504-1017


http://www.ga.wa.gov/purchase

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) 


Debt Collection Services

		RFP

		Pre-Bid Conference

		Bid Opening Date & Time



		06204

		April 18th, 2005

At 9.00 am PST

		May 16th, 2005 at 2:00 P.M.





bids shall be received& Stamped on or before the opening date & time at this location: 


210 11th AVe SW, Rm. 201, General Administration Building Olympia WA 98504-1017

Aleksey Belov, CPIM, C.P.M.

State Procurement Officer


Phone (360) 902-7414


Fax (360) 586-2426


E-mail  abelov@ga.wa.gov





· For a site map to the Capitol Campus, http://access.wa.gov/government/images/campus_map.jpg. 


· Driving directions and parking information http://www.leg.wa.gov/common/maps/parking.htm

CHECK LIST 

This checklist is provided for Bidder's convenience only and identifies the documents that must be submitted with the bid package.  Any bid packages received without these documents will be deemed non-responsive and will not be considered for award.  Each section/item on the Check List should be clearly identified in the bid submitted to the Office of State Procurement.

Offer and Award Page





page 4

___


Response to the Statement of Work




page 8

___

Response to the Bid Evaluation/Award



page 21
___





Attachment B






page 26
___


Attachment C






page 28
___


Attachment E






page 30
___

Bid Information (Attachment A)




page 24
___

References







page 20
___

CD/disk with electronic copies of the price sheets


page 21
___                                                                                                                                     

Procurement Schedule


RFP posted in WEBS






April 11th, 2005

Pre-Bid Conference






April 18th, 2005

Release of updated RFP





April 21st, 2005



Note: Only if there are any important changes, as determined by the state, after the pre-bid conference.


RFP responses due






May 16th, 2005

Operant Successful Winner notified




May 24th, 2005

Award/Contract Term Commences




June 1st, 2005

Note: State of Washington reserves the right to adjust the schedule as it sees fit.

I. ANNOUNCEMENT AND SPECIAL INFORMATION


Bidders are required to read and understand all information contained within this entire bid package.  The Competitive Procurement Standards, which are referred to in this bid package are not automatically printed or sent out with this RFP.  By responding to this RFP the Bidder agrees to read and understand these documents.  These documents are available on our website at http://www.ga.wa.gov/pca/cps.htm. 


In support of the State’s economic and environmental goals, we encourage you to consider the following elements in responding to our bids.  These are not a factor of award (unless otherwise specified in this document):


· Using environmentally preferable products and products that exceed EPA guidelines


· Supporting a diverse supplier pool, including small, minority, and women-owned firms


· Featuring products made or grown in Washington

1. PUBLIC DISCLOSURE


Bid information, including price sheets, shall not be available for public disclosure until after award of the contract.  At the time of bid opening, only the name of the Bidder and time of bid receipt shall be read aloud.


2. PREBID CONFERENCE


An optional conference to address contractual requirements shall be held at the time and location indicated below.  Prospective bidders are encouraged to be present.  If changes are required as a result of the conference, written bid amendments shall be issued.  For additional information, please contact the State Procurement Officer.


Note:  Assistance for disabled, blind or hearing-impaired persons who wish to attend is available with pre-arrangement with the Office of State Procurement (OSP).  Contact the State Procurement Officer identified on the face page of this document.


		Pre Bid Location:

		Office of State Procurement


210 11th AVE SW GA Building Room 201


Corner of 11th and Columbia


Olympia Washington 98504-1017





Pre-Bid conference shall be held on April 18th, 2005 at 9.00 am Pacific Standard Time.

3. OFFER AND AWARD


Bidders are required to read and understand all information contained within this entire bid package.  There are some standard documents, which are referred to in this bid package that are not automatically printed or sent out with this bid.  For example, Competitive Procurement Standards (Standard Terms and Conditions, Instructions to Bidders, Definitions), Sales/Service & Subcontractor Report are binding terms of this contract.  It is important that you read and understand these documents.  These documents are available on our website at http://www.ga.wa.gov/pca/cps.htm.  If you do not have Internet access, you may contact the State Procurement Officer to obtain copies of any and all documents contained in this bid package.


STANDARD DEFINITIONS revised 06/02/03

STANDARD INSTRUCTIONS FOR BIDDERS revised 06/02/03


STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS revised 06/02/03

		(Company Name)

		

		(Typed or Printed Name)



		

		

		



		(Address)

		

		(Title)



		

		

		



		(City)

(State)

(Zip)

		

		(Phone No.)



		

		

		



		(Federal Tax Identification Number)

		

		(Bidder’s Signature)

(Date)



		

		

		



		Email

		

		





CONTRACT AWARD


(For State of Washington Use Only)


A contract is hereby awarded between the above company and the State of Washington, Office of State Procurement, Purchasing and Contract Administration, to be effective 


, Year

.  This is a Partial/Total award for 




.


Authorized Signatures


		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		(State Procurement Officer)

		

		(Date)

		

		(Purchasing Manager)

		

		(Date)
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4. Definitions:


1. Assigning state agency: the state agency that holds the unpaid debt before it is turned over for collection whether it is an unpaid account or NSF check


2. Claim:  any obligation for the payment of money or thing of value arising out of any agreement or contract, express or implied.


3. Client or Customer:  any person authorizing or employing a collection agency to collect a claim.


4. Collector's fee: the percentage of the amount collected that the contractor will keep as a fee.


5. Debtor:  any person or company owing or alleged to owe a claim.


6. FDCPA:  Fair Debt Collections Practice Act


7. In-state legal: accounts within the State of Washington requiring legal actions primarily on filed warrants and judgments.


8. Judgments:  a court act creating or affirming an obligation, as a debt.


9. Lien:  all real and personal property used in the business and owned by the taxpayer is encumbered by the state.


10. NSF: Non Sufficient Funds.


11. Out of state legal:  accounts out of the State of Washington requiring legal actions primarily on filed warrants and judgments.


12. Special Assistant Attorney General Administration:  the Attorney General’s Office is allowed to appoint in-state attorneys as well as out-of-state attorneys as special assistant attorneys general for actions brought on behalf of the State of Washington.

13. Warrants:  a voucher authorizing payment or receipt of money.


5. SCOPE


The purpose of this RFP is to establish a mandatory statewide debt collections services contract. Debt collection services include: collection of debt and NSF check collection services.  Contract established, as a result of this RFP, shall replace contracts #04198 (Collection Agency Services) and #04398 (NSF Check Collection Services).  The RFP has two (2) categories: Category 1, Collection Agency Services and Category 2, NSF Check Collection Services.  Bidders shall bid on both categories.

A. Estimated Usage: We estimate that over the initial term of the contract, usage may approximate $936,626.75, both Category 1 and Category 2.  Estimates are based on past usage collected with the previously established state contracts.  The State does not guarantee any minimum purchase.  Orders shall be placed on an as needed basis.


B. Contract Type: Contract is designated as a mandatory use contract for Washington State agencies and a convenience use contract for other Purchasers. 


C. Purchasers:  The primary Purchasers shall be all Washington State agencies and participating Institutions of Higher Education (Colleges and Universities, Community and Technical Colleges).  The contract shall be made available to political subdivisions and non-profit organizations that are members of the Washington State Purchasing Cooperative (WSPC), list available on the Internet http://www.ga.wa.gov/pca/supplier.htm.  Contract may be used by Oregon State agencies that are members of the ORCPP. 


D. WSPC and Higher Education: While use of the contract by members of the WSPC and Higher Education is optional, the state encourages them to use state contracts. Their use of the contracts may significantly increase the purchase volume.  Their orders are subject to the same contract terms, conditions, and pricing as state agencies.  The state accepts no responsibility for payment by WSPC members.


E. Term: Contract term shall be twenty four (24) months from the effective date of award with the option to extend for additional terms or portions; total contract term not to exceed six (6) years, unless a special circumstance requires an extension for a limited period.  Extensions shall be subject to mutual agreement.

F. Potential users of this contract:  State Healthcare Authority, Department of Revenue, Department of Labor and Industries, Department of Transportation, etc.  
 


II. SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS


1. CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATIONS


The following are minimum qualifications that Contractor must possess when submitting for the award of this contract.  By submitting a bid response for this contract, contractor certifies that its company meets or exceeds minimum qualifications below:


a) Bidder has five (5) years of experience providing services similar in scope as described herein.

b) Bidder can provide statewide service in Washington State.


c) The contractor must be able to locate delinquent state debtors within the state of Washington, as well as nationwide.  

d) The contractor must be able to capture, update, report and transfer any and all information gathered on the assigned accounts to the agency in an automated manner, and should be willing to prepare and submit detailed management reports to the agency requesting the collection effort.

e) The contractor must have experience and understanding of collection of governmental and educational account receivables.  

f) The contractor must have an established history of ethical and legal collection practices, especially with confidentiality of client information and the level of professional standards displayed by the contractor's employees.


g) Contractor must have a high level of capacity, including but not limited to:


· Availability of a competent staff that can meet the operational requirements of the bid

· A legal department that includes one or more in-house attorneys


· Procedures for suit and garnishment, for both in-state and out of state accounts


· Management level employees to be responsible for all state accounts


· Dedicated customer service representative and collection manager whose priority is state accounts


· In-house training program of personnel, which will insure adequately trained people available to work on state accounts at all times (Ex:  People trained to understand state language, rules, policies, special needs, etc.)

· Sufficient hardware and/or the availability of a service bureau that can handle the volume of accounts receivable data


· Adequate reporting and case tracking system (s) that will capture desired information on assigned accounts, updated and reported to the agency requesting contractor's services

· Modern security system (s) and procedures to protect confidentiality and safety of any stored data


h) Bidder has not received a corporate criminal conviction within the past three (3) years.

i) Bidder is not currently rendered ineligible from doing business or receiving monetary benefits with a government agency because of debarment.

2. Statement of Work


Debt Collection Bidders will submit bids for the provision of collection services for categories, Category 1 or 2.  

Specifications

Category 1 – Collection Services


In State Regular Collection Service


The successful contractor will be responsible for handling all correspondence and telephone calls dealing with the account.


Contractor will make every effort to contact debtor using phone calls, letters, skip tracing techniques, etc., in order to collect the debt.

If current phone and address of debtor is not accurate, contractor will make every effort to find current address.


In State Legal Collection Services


In state legal action will primarily consist of acting on filed warrants and judgments.  This will include the levying of any money sources, as well as the garnishing of wages.  


Any further actions must be approved by the assigning state agency.  Fees for additional services will be negotiated, with the maximum fee being 60% of amount collected or the actual costs which are incurred plus the stated percentage for legal collection services, whichever is less.


It is expected that the majority of filings will be done by the state agency.  Some filing may be required under the scope of this contract.


No legal action shall be commenced by the contractor on any State agency's accounts without written permission from the State agency.


All legal action will be taken in the name of the contractor, in accordance with RCW 19.16.270.


All legal work will be done by attorneys who have been designated a Special Assistant Attorney General by the Washington State Office of the Attorney General.


Out of State Regular Collection Service


The successful contractor must have the ability to run a collection operation in all 50 states.  

The successful contractor will be responsible for handling all correspondence and telephone calls dealing with the account.


The Successful contractor will make every effort to contact debtor using phone calls, letters, skip tracing techniques, etc., in order to collect the debt.

If current phone and address of debtor is not accurate, contractor will make every effort to find current address.


Fee charged will be determined to be in state if collected in the state of Washington. 


Out of State Legal Collection Services


Out of State: Legal actions will consist of acting on filed warrants and judgments.  This will include the levying of any money sources, as well as the garnishing of wages.  


Any further actions must be approved by the assigning state agency.  Fees for additional services will be negotiated, with the maximum fee being 60% of amount collected or the actual costs which are incurred plus the stated percentage for legal collection services, whichever is less.


Out of State: Legal Preliminary actions will include the filing of warrants, foreign judgments and liens in the appropriate county.


No legal action shall be commenced by the contractor on any State agency's accounts without written permission from the State agency.


All legal action will be taken in the name of the contractor, in accordance with RCW 19.16.270.


All legal work will be done by attorneys who have been designated a Special Assistant Attorney General by the Washington State Office of the Attorney General.  It shall be the responsibility of the contractor to become familiar with Chapters 19 regarding collections, and Chapter 6.36, Uniform Enforcement of Foreign Judgment Act, of the Revised Code of Washington.  In addition, because each agency is governed by additional RCW's and WAC's, it will be the responsibility of both the agency and the contractor to assure that the legal representation is aware of the additional codes.


NOTE:  The Department of Revenue (DOR), per RCW 82.32.265, does all of their own in-state collections.  The department will turn over out of state accounts to a collection agency after exhausting all steps in collecting.

Category 2 – NSF Check Collection


Regular NSF Collections 


Contractor will mail a validation of debt notice, on collection agency letterhead as provided by FDCPA (PL-95-109) upon receiving the account to the consumer debtor at the last known address.  Agency may choose that debt notice be on their own letterhead.


Contractor will send Statutory Notice of Dishonor to consumer's last known address unless such notice has been sent by state agency.  The majority of the state agencies will have sent the notice before referring the account to contractors.


The successful contractor will be responsible for handling all correspondence and telephone calls dealing with the account.


Contractor will make every effort to contact debtor using phone calls, letters, skip tracing techniques, etc., in order to collect the debt.


If current phone and address of debtor is not accurate, contractor will make every effort to find current address.


Legal NSF Collections


No legal action shall be commenced by the contractor on any State agency’s accounts without written permission from the State agency.


All legal action will be taken in the name of the contractor, in accordance with RCW 19.16.270.


All legal work will be done by attorneys who have been designated a Special Assistant Attorney General by the Washington State Office of the Attorney General.


Ordering Services

In order to acquire collection services and/or NSF collection services, client agency, or other entities authorized to procure services off of the contract established as a result of this RFP, will contact the vendor via telephone/email/fax/mail, and established an account with the chosen vendor by providing the necessary information to the vendor.  The following minimum information should be submitted: name, address, and dollar amount owed.  However preferred amount of information would be as follows: name, address, phone, dollar amount owed, social security number, date of birth, clients account number and employer.

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING 


Only for category 1


If a State Agency wants to transfer the costs of collection to the debtor (per RCW 19.16.500), Contractor and State Agency must complete Attachment D, draft of the Letter of Understanding, before accounts can be turned over to the Contractor.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT


Contractor shall furnish to each state agency a written acknowledgement of every debt assigned including date assigned, debtors name, state agency account number and the amount assigned.  Acknowledgement will be mailed or submitted electronically via email within 10 working days of receipt.


MINIMUM DEBT


Category 1


The contractor will accept assigned debts in any amount stated as due and unpaid, with the minimum debt being $50.00.  The amount may be based on actual billings or on estimates.  Multiple debts of one debtor shall be considered one debt to attain minimum.


Category 2


There will be no minimum amount to be assigned under the check collection program.


CONSULTING/TRAINING


Consulting/training on internal collection procedures are not a part of the contract.  

USE


This contract shall not be used by any state agency in the collection of fees owed against another.

 ADDITIONAL CHARGES


Only for Category 1 


The contractor shall not add a collection charge to the assigned account except for federally secured loans, or fines and other penalties awarded by the court.  However, this prohibition shall not be construed to prevent the addition of court costs, disbursements and attorney fees, if otherwise allowable, in legal actions, as authorized by the state agency. 


RETURNING ACCOUNTS


Category 1 


In the event an account is deemed uncollectible by the contractor within sixty days of the assignment, it shall be returned to the agency together with an explanation of why it is uncollectible. For accounts assigned out of state collection, where the debtor becomes domiciled in the state, the contractor shall immediately notify the agency and refer the account back, with such additional information as it may be acquired, including, but not limited to, the debtor’s current address and employment. In any case, where an account has become subject of a bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or probate, the contractor shall immediately on discovery, refer the account back to the agency with the name and address of the court and the identifying court docket number. In any of the foregoing situations, no additional fees or charges shall be billed to or paid by the agency to the contractor after return of such accounts.


As requested by each state agency, all accounts that have no activity shall be returned to the State agency within six (6) months after being assigned to the contractor.  With the consent of the State agency, an account may remain with the contractor after six (6) months.  An account for which a repayment schedule has been established and payments are being received regularly shall remain with the contractor until the account is paid in full or until a default in the payment schedule occurs. The collection period may be extended if legal action has been commenced or for other reasons mutually agreed upon in writing by the contractor and State agency.  


Once accounts are closed and returned to the state agency, contractors are not entitled to any money, if they collect on the account, unless they have specific permission from state agency to collect on account.


Category 2


Checks referred will not generally be returned to the state agency unless specifically requested.  However, after a minimum of six (6) months, state agency may ask for accounts to be returned.  If special circumstances exist, state agency may also ask for individual accounts to be returned earlier.


WITHDRAWING OF ACCOUNTS


Category 1 only

Any or all of the accounts assigned to the contractor may be withdrawn by the State agency at any time, upon written or telephonic notification.  However, for accounts withdrawn that have been with the contractor less than six (6) months, any payment received by either the contractor or the State agency for such accounts, within thirty (30) days after the date of notification of withdrawal, shall be subject to the collection fee.  


 ACCOUNT SUSPENSION


Category 1


The contractor agrees to suspend action, either temporarily or permanently, on any account, upon notification of a request from the State agency to suspend action.  Accounts suspended over one (1) month will be returned to the state agency.


Category 2


The contractor agrees to suspend action, either temporarily or permanently, on any account upon receipt of a request from the State agency to suspend action.  Accounts suspended over three months will be returned to the state agency.


 SETTLEMENTS


Category 1 


The contractor shall not have authority to accept a compromise on any account.  All such offers of settlements will be forwarded to the state agency to be negotiated and approved by the state agency.  The contractor's fee will be based upon the settled amount.


Category 2


The contractor shall not have authority to accept a compromise settlement on any account without the written consent of the State agency.  This consent will be accomplished by a prior written agreement in which parameters are established.  If payment schedule is negotiated, contractor will monitor and collect the payments.


If account has been referred to the collection agency, any settlements must have prior approval from the collection agency, specifically regarding payment of the applicable fees.  If state agency accepts settlement, collection agency will still be entitled to fees as described in contract.


ACCOUNT REDUCTION


Category 1


In cases where accounts assigned to contractor are based upon estimated amounts or subject to an offset and the state agency adjusts those accounts to a lesser amount, the fee will be based upon the lesser amount. Further, if an account is reduced to "0” or cancelled by the adjustment, no fee will be due to contractor.


Category 2


The state reserves the right on behalf of its agencies to set off tax refunds or other credits due the debtor against any account assigned to the contractor, reducing the account balance.


In the event an account is reduced or canceled by such credits, no collection fee will be due the contractor for the amount so reduced or canceled.


NEGOTIATED PAYMENTS


Category 1


Payment agreements may be negotiated by the contractor based on the parameters established by the state agency.  Contractor will monitor and collect all payments.


Category 2


Payment schedules may be negotiated by the contractor only with prior approval from the assigning state agency.  This consent may be accomplished by a prior written agreement in which specific parameters are established.  Contractor will monitor and collect all payments. 

CONTRACT TERMINATION


If contract is terminated for any reason, contractor will be required to return all accounts, which do not have an existing payment plan in place.  Upon return, information regarding account should include all relevant information, including last known address.


Additionally, terminated contractor shall not be entitled to any fees, if accounts are subsequently collected.  Upon termination, any accounts, which have negotiated payment schedules in place, will stay in possession of collection agency until paid in full, or until default.


In Addition to Category 2


If legal action has commenced, contractor has the option of keeping the account for a period of six (6) months after contract termination.


POSTING category 2 only


All debts collected will be posted no later than one (1) state business day after date of collection.


FLEXIBILITY


Contractor will be required to become familiar with each agency's specific requirements.  Because there are a wide range of programs and requirements, contractor shall be flexible in the execution of this contract in order to meet each state agency's needs.

Contractor shall conduct business with the client agency based on terms and conditions of the contract awarded as a result of this RFP, and shall not require any signing of company's legal forms (i.e. agreements) that shall or may omit the original terms and conditions of the contract.

REVISED CODE OF WASHINGTON 19.16.500 AND 1982 C 65 S 1

At user agency’s option, the following amended legislation shall apply:


(a) Agencies, departments, taxing districts, political subdivisions of the state, counties and incorporated cities may retain, by written contract, collection agencies licensed under this chapter for the purpose of collecting public debts owed by any person, including any restitution that is being collected on behalf of a crime victim.


(b) Any governmental entity as described in (s) of this subsection using a collection agency may add a reasonable fee,  payable by the debtor, to the outstanding debt for the collection agency fee incurred or to be incurred.  The amount to be paid for collection services shall be left to the agreement of the governmental entity and its collection agency or agencies, but a contingent fee of up to fifty percent of the first one hundred thousand dollars of the unpaid debt per account and up to thirty-five percent of the unpaid debt over one hundred thousand dollars per account is reasonable, and a minimum fee of the full amount of the debt up to one hundred dollars per account is reasonable.   Any fee agreement entered into by a governmental entity is presumptively reasonable.


(2) No debt may be assigned to a collection agency unless (a) there has been an attempt to advise the debtor (i) of the existence of the debt and (ii) that the debt may be assigned to a collection agency for collection if the debt is not paid, and (b) at least thirty days have elapsed from the time the notice was sent and attempted.


(3) Collection agencies assigned debts under this section shall have only those remedies and powers which would be available to them as assignees of private creditors.


(4) For purposes of this section, the term debt shall include fines and other debts, including the fee required under subsection (1) (b) of this section.


Passed the Senate April 22, 1997


Passed the House April 10, 1997


Approved by the Governor May 15, 1997


Filed in Office of the Secretary May 15, 1997

CONFIDENTIALITY


Data files of the state agencies are of confidential nature. The contractor’s employees assigned to these cases shall be allowed access to these files as needed for their duties related to the contract. These files shall not be co-mingled with other collection files.  The contractor shall maintain positive policies and procedures for safeguarding the confidentiality of such data. Contractor may be liable civilly or criminally under privacy legislation for release of such information.


FOREIGN JUDGEMENTS


In the event a foreign judgment has been filed by the contractor’s legal department but no further action has taken place in six months, the state agency may request the account be returned. If collections occur as a direct result of the filed foreign judgment, and can be proved to the state agency’s satisfaction that the sale was a direct result of contractor's action, the fee will be due to the contractor.


Bankruptcy 



Bidders shall not be eligible for award if they are in a bankruptcy status, Chapter 11, at any time during bid process.  In addition, if a contractor is placed in a bankruptcy status, Chapter 11, during the life of the contract, the contract may be cancelled immediately.


PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS


The contractor shall not engage in any illegal, unfair, unprofessional or unethical collection practices.  Contractor shall not violate any provision of Federal or State laws relating to collection agency and debt collection practices.  Further, contractor and employees of the contractor will comply with any state agency confidentiality requirements regarding assigned account information


3. PRICING AND ADJUSTMENTS


During contract period, fees shall remain firm and fixed for at least 365 calendar days after effective start date of the contract.


Adjustments in pricing shall be at the discretion of the State Procurement Officer and shall:


a) Be the result of increases incurred after contract commencement date.


b) Not produce a higher profit margin than that on the original contract.


c) Clearly identify the items impacted by the increase.


d) Be filed with State Procurement Officer a minimum of 90 calendar days before the effective date of proposed increase.


e) Be accompanied by documentation acceptable to the State Procurement Officer sufficient to warrant the increase.


f) Any change in pricing shall remain firm and fixed for at least 365 calendar days after the effective date of a price change.


During the contract period, any price declines at the contractor's level or cost reductions to Contractor shall be reflected in a reduction of the contract price retroactive to Contractor's effective date.


During the contract period, should the Contractor enter into pricing agreements with other customers providing greater benefits or pricing, Contractor shall immediately amend the state contract to provide similar pricing to the state if the contract with other customers offers similar usage quantities, and similar conditions impacting pricing. 


4. MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP


Contractor shall be required to furnish all materials, equipment and/or services necessary to perform contractual requirements.  Materials and workmanship in the construction of equipment for this contract shall conform to all codes, regulations and requirements for such equipment, specifications contained herein, and the normal uses for which intended.  Materials shall be manufactured in accordance with the best commercial practices and standards for this type of equipment.


5. CONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE


a) General Requirements: The state, in conjunction with Purchasers, monitors and maintains records of Contractor performance.  Said performance shall be a factor in evaluation and award of this and all future contracts.  Purchasers shall be provided with product/service performance report forms to forward reports of superior or poor performance to the State Procurement Officer.

6. Insurance

In addition to the insurance requirements outlined in the Competitive Procurement Standards, please note the following:

Errors and Omissions Insurance


The state will not be responsible for any mistakes or omissions by any contractor under this agreement in performance of services provided under contract.  Limitation of liability includes, but is not limited to, unintentional, negligent, willful or intentional mistakes or omissions by any contractor, employee of contractor, or sub-contractor.  Further, the state will not be responsible for any acts of the contractor that occur during the course of the performance of this contract, but are not related to translation services.  These acts include all criminal and civil acts that may give rise to liability.


The contractor and subcontractor(s) shall at all times during the term of this contract, carry and maintain Errors and Omissions Liability insurance with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per incident, loss or person, as applicable.  If defense costs are paid within limit of liability, Contractor shall maintain limits of $2,000,000 per incident, loss or person as applicable.


Fidelity Bond

The contractor shall at all times during the term of this contract, carry and maintain Fidelity Bond with minimum limits of 1,000,000 per incident, loss or person, as applicable.

7. RETENTION OF RECORDS

Contractor shall maintain, for at least six (6) years after completion of this contract, all relevant records pertaining to this contract.  This shall include, but not be limited to, all records pertaining to actual contract performance from the date of contract award.  The State shall have the right to examine, audit, and transcribe all said records.  If this contract involves federal funds, Contractor shall comply with all record keeping requirements set forth in any federal rules, regulations, or statutes included or referenced in the contract documents.


8. CONTRACT ACTIVITY REPORTS


The contractor(s) must provide the following report(s) to Office of State Procurement.


A.  Sales and Subcontractor Report (Categories 1 and 2).

A quarterly Sales and Subcontractor Report (attached) shall be submitted in the format provided by the Office of State Procurement.  You can get the report electronically at http://www.ga.wa.gov/PCA/forms/usage.doc.  Total purchases for each State Agency, University, Community and Technical Colleges must be shown separately.  Total purchases for all political subdivisions and non-profit organizations may be summarized as one customer.  Additionally, all purchases by the State of Oregon or other purchasers must be reported as an aggregate total.


The report shall include sales information (Section A) and amounts paid to each subcontractor during the reporting period (Section B).


Reports should be rounded to nearest dollar.  Contractors will be provided with all necessary sample forms, instructions, and lists.  Reports are due thirty (30) days after the end of the calendar quarter, i.e., April 30th, July 31st, October 31st and January 31st.  


B.  Agencies Category 1 reports -- Collection Services.

The contractor shall, upon request, provide the state agency and OSP an analysis of accounts assigned to the contractor.  The analysis shall show the recovery history in number of accounts, percentages of accounts collected, percentage of dollars collected, as well as any other information requested by the state.

1. Active accounts report.


Each state agency will receive a monthly report no later than the 10th of each month.  The report shall include the following minimum information for all active accounts:


· Both state agency and collection agency account numbers.


· Debtor name.


· Date of assignment.


· Warrant/Reference number.

· Amount of assignment.


· Last payment date.


· Balance.


· Current status (i.e. Dispute, Collecting, Unable to collect, etc.).

2. Cancelled, determined uncollectible, or sent back to state agency reports.

Each state agency will receive a monthly report showing all accounts that have been cancelled, determined uncollectible, or sent back to state agency.  This report shall include the following minimum information:


· Account number.


· Account name.


· Date of assignment.


· Balance.


· Warrant/Reference number.


· Reason for cancellation or return.


3. Monthly total collected amount report.


Each state agency will receive a monthly report showing all monies collected for the previous month.  This report will include the following minimum information:

· Payment date.


· Account numbers.


· Account name.


· Warrant/Reference number.


· Amount collected.


· Commission due.


· Account balance.


· Applicable remarks.


C.  Agencies Category 2 reports -- NSF Checks.


The contractor shall, upon request, provide the state agency an analysis of the accounts assigned to the Contractor.  The analysis shall show the recovery history in numbers of accounts, percentage of accounts collected, percentage of dollars returned to state, as well as any other information requested by the state.


1. Each state agency will receive a monthly report no later than the 10th of each month.  The report will include the following minimum information for all active accounts:  


· Both state agency and collection agency account #.

· Debtor Name.

· Date of Assignment.

· Warrant/Reference Number.

· Amount of Assignment.

· Last Payment Date.

· Balance.

· Current Status (i.e. Dispute, Collecting, Unable to collect).  List of activities must be complete.  Description of activities may be coded as long as a key is provided.


2.  Each state agency will receive a monthly report showing all accounts that have been cancelled, determined uncollectible, or sent back to state agency.  This report will include the following minimum information:


· Account Numbers.

· Account Name.

· Date of Assignment.

· Balance.

· Warrant/Reference Number.

· Description of Activities.

· Description of activities may be coded as long as key is provided.


3.  Each state agency will receive a monthly report showing all monies collected for the previous month.  The report will include the following information:


· Payment Date


· Account Numbers


· Name


· Warrant/Reference Number


· Amount Collected


· Account Balance


· Applicable Remarks


· Account number of collected check

9. Fees

Bidder shall bid on Category 1 -- Collection Services and/or Category 2 -- NSF Check Collection services, as identified herein.  Bidder shall complete Attachments B and C pricing worksheets to demonstrate the percentage fees to be charged to the state of Washington for services provided, bids received without pricing for Part B and C shall be rejected as non-responsive. 

Category 1


All accounts assigned for collection shall be on a contingency basis.  That is, the Client shall not be charged anything, if the Contractor is unable to recover the monies on the accounts assigned.  The sole consideration to be paid to the Contractor for its services shall be the agreed upon collection fee percentage of any monies recovered.


Category 2

All checks assigned for collection shall be on a contingency basis.  That is, the Client shall not be charged anything, if the Contractor is unable to recover the monies on checks so assigned.

REMITTANCE


Category 1:


The successful contractor will be required to remit all required funds no later than the closest working day to the 10th of the month following the collection.


State agencies have two options, entirely at each agency's discretion, for remittance.


1)  All funds collected will be remitted to the agency along with a statement of the collection fees due.  After verifying the statement, the state agency will then remit collection fees back to the contractor.


2)  Only the percentage of the collections to which the state is entitled will be remitted to the state agency along with any required reports. 


Any payments not postmarked by the closest state business date to the 10th may be subject to a late payment fee of 3% of the collection fees due.  Any payments not postmarked by the 20th may be subject to a late payment fee of 10% of the collection fees due.  Repeated failure of contractor to remit payments as required will be grounds for contract termination.


Category 2


On all checks collected, the State is to receive 100% of the face value of the check within thirty days of collection.  In addition, contractor will pay the referring state agency a collection fee in the amount indicated in Attachment C, for each check collected.  Contractor will retain all collected fees, interest, and charges, less the agreed upon collection fee.


PAYMENTS DIRECT TO STATE


Category 1


Any payment received directly by the State agency within ten (l0) days after referral to contractor will not be subject to the collection fee. Those accounts assigned to out of state collection shall not receive a fee from the sale of real or personal property in the state unless the contractor can clearly prove to the agency that the sale of such was a direct result of the contractors actions.  The contractor will not receive a fee where tax refunds or the credits due the debtor are applied to a referred account. 


All other payments received directly by the State agency for accounts assigned to the contractor shall be subject to the collection fee and the agency shall notify the contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of such payment to be credited to the assigned account.  


Category 2


Any payment received directly by the State agency within two (2) days after agency receipt of acknowledgment will not be subject to the collection fee.


All other payments received directly by the State agency for accounts assigned to the contractor shall be included in the total payments collected and shall be subject to the collection fee.  


The State shall, within a reasonable period of time, notify the contractor of any payment received by the state for an account assigned to the contractor.

On-line Access to Accounts

The user agencies may require inquiry access to the contractor’s case tracking and/or collection system to review status of all their accounts.  User agencies also require updated capability to respond to questions or disputes on accounts.  


While the contractor is welcome to provide such capabilities, it will not be required.  The contractor should be ready and willing to work with the user agencies to insure that an effective method of communication is established and perfected.  


AUTHORIZED FEES


Only Category 2


Contractor is authorized to assess the legal handling fee authorized by RCW 62A.3-515-520.  If debt is collected after fifteen (15) days from notice of dishonor, in addition to the agreed upon reasonable handling fee, the collection agency is authorized to add the cost of the collection, which will not exceed forty dollars or the face amount of the check, whichever is less.  


The reasonable handling fee will be determined by the contract administrator and will only be changed at time of contract extension at the contract administrator's option.  Handling fee will be a conservative reflection of the typical handling fee in the marketplace.  The handling fee will not exceed $30.00.


For all legal actions, damages will be awarded as authorized by RCW 62A.3.515 (currently $300.00 or three times the face amount of the check, whichever is less), by award of the court only.  This is in addition to any handling and collection fees.


INTEREST

Category 1


Contractor shall monitor all accounts and at least monthly, calculate interest owed to the date of recalculation. Contractor shall charge interest on accounts in compliance with state agency governing laws and regulations specific to an agency or account class. It will be the responsibility of the state agency to communicate any requirements. Upon request by a state agency, contractor will not charge interest on any account or class of accounts specified.  All interest will be added to original amount assigned, and the fee will be calculated per terms of the contract on the total amount.


Category 2


Contractor shall charge interest on NSF checks as defined by RCW 62A.3-515, or by other governing laws and regulations specific to an agency or account class.  It will be the responsibility of the state agency to communicate any requirements which usurp RCW 62A.3-515.


Upon request by state agency, contractor will not charge interest on any account or class of accounts specified.


10. PURCHASES BY NONPROFIT CORPORATIONS


Bidder shall identify whether Contractor agrees to sell goods or services at contract pricing awarded under this contract to self certified nonprofit corporations.  Legislation allows nonprofit corporations to participate in state contracts for purchases administered by the Office of State Procurement (OSP). Such organizations purchasing under this contract shall do so only to the extent they retain eligibility and comply with other contract and statutory provisions.  The Contractor may make reasonable inquiry of credit worthiness prior to accepting orders or delivering goods or services on contract.  The state accepts no responsibility for payments by nonprofit corporations.  Contracted payment terms may not be changed for nonprofit orders by Contractor.


11. REFERENCES


Bidder shall furnish with bid response a minimum of three (3) different (no duplicates) references for which Bidder has delivered goods and/or services similar in scope as described herein during the past three (3) years.  Bid will be determined as non-responsive, if bidder fails to submit at least three (3) references, as constructed with the bid.  Consideration will be given to experiences and references of similar size and type of customers, contracts, and projects, and the results that demonstrate Bidder’s experiences and capacities.  In selecting references, choose experiences that demonstrate your company's capacity.  Bidder should confirm all reference contact information is current.  State reserves the right to use other references in addition to those provided by Bidder.  The state reserves the right to use references to ascertain the extent of the services provided, to confirm satisfactory customer service, past performance, knowledge of product/service and timeliness (http://www.ga.wa.gov/PCA/Forms/REFERENCES.doc)

12. CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIVE


Bidder shall identify representatives in bid response.


a) Designation:  Bidder shall furnish contact information and service areas for representative(s) as required in bid.


b) Responsibility:  Representative(s) shall function as the primary point of contact, shall ensure supervision and coordination and shall take corrective action as necessary to meet contractual requirements.


c) Availability:  Representative(s), or designee(s), shall be available during normal working hours (Monday through Friday, 8AM to 5PM Pacific Time) and return customer’s call by the next business day.

Bidder to complete Attachment A on page 24.

13. BID RESPONSE DOCUMENTS


Bidder is to provide a total of 3 copies including the original bid package.  Bidder to indicate which copy is the original bid document.  Bidders shall provide an electronic version (Compact Disc) of the Price Sheets.  For ease of evaluating bid response, Bidder is encouraged to index their bid response and use three-ring binders of three inches or less.


14. BIDDER COMPLIANCE


The State reserves the right to consider the actual level of bidder’s compliance with the requirements specified in this RFP, and to consider a bid responsive if it substantially complies with the state’s intent relative to overall bid requirements and specifications.


15. EVALUATION CONFERENCE


To aid in the evaluation process, after bid opening, the state may require individual Bidders to appear at a date, time and place determined by the state for the purpose of conducting discussions to determine whether both parties have a full and complete understanding of the nature and scope of contractual requirements.  In no manner shall such action be construed as negotiations or an indication of the state’s intention to award.


16. BID EVALUATION / AWARD


The state intends to award a contract to a single Bidder for both categories A & B, subject to the preferences provided by law, including RCW 43.19, however, if the state determines that one vendor cannot handle the volume, the contract will be awarded to multiple bidders.  State may reject any or all bids or waive minor informalities in any bid as is necessary to complete the evaluation process.

Bids shall be evaluated upon the criteria outlined below, with maximum of 247 points available.   Please respond to the criteria listed below, in your bid, in the same order and grouping.  The length of your response should be one page or less per each section title (Ex: Policies for debt collection process shall equal a page or less, etc).  Section titled A, Financial, response shall be worked out on Attachments B and C.  Sections B, C and D shall be worked out on Attachment E.



A. Financial (Cost).  Maximum available 145 pts.

Category 1


In-state Regular (max 45)

In-state Legal (max 30)

Out of State Regular (max 20)

Out of State Legal (max 10)

· For evaluation purposes, the principal and collection amounts will be added together to arrive at one amount for all four examples.  The bidder (s) with the lowest total amount will receive the highest available financial evaluation points.  Please complete the following examples.


Category 2


Collection fee per check (max 30)

Collection fee per check legal action (max 10)

B. Automation.  Maximum available 16 pts.

Categories 1 and 2


On-line Access (max 2)

On-line Credit Reports (max 2)

Real-Time Information (max 2)

Ability to submit account information on-line (max 2)

Automated access to vendor's database (max 2)

800 phone number (max 2)

In-state locations link electronically for information accessibility (max 2)

On-line access to accounts (max 2)

C.  
Experience and Logistics.  Maximum available 30 pts.

Categories 1 and 2


Number of years operating (max 15)

Number of states in which agency collects directly w/o forwarding (max 15).


D.
Personnel.  Maximum available 30 pts.

Category 1


Number of collectors to be assigned to account (max 5)

Legal Department


1) Suit/garnishment process (max 5)

2) Out of state suit/garnishment process (max 5)

Management level staff for account (max 5)

Customer representative (s) per state account (max 5)

Collection manager (s) per state account (max 5)

G. References.  Maximum available 6 pts.

http://www.ga.wa.gov/PCA/Forms/REFERENCES.doc

H. Policies and Procedures.  Maximum available 20 pts.

· Policies for debt collection process (max 5).


· Procedures for debt collection process (max 5).

· Policies for NSF check collection process (max 5).


· Procedures for NSF check collection process (max 5).


Attachment A

BID INFORMATION 


Bidder shall complete the following:


Authorized Representative:


		Primary Contact-Contract Administration

		Alternate Contact - Contract Administration



		Name:

		

		Name:

		



		Telephone:

		

		Telephone:

		



		Fax:

		

		Fax:

		



		Email:

		

		Email:

		



		Customer Service/Order Placement



		Name:

		

		Name:

		



		Telephone:

		

		Telephone:

		



		Fax:

		

		Fax:

		



		Email:

		

		Email:

		





Addresses:


		Orders to be sent to:

		Billing will be from:

		Payment to be sent to:



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		





Indicate where physically   located branches in the state of Washington:


		Adams 

		

		Cowlitz

		

		Island

		

		Lincoln

		

		Skagit

		

		Walla Walla

		



		Asotin 

		

		Douglas

		

		Jefferson

		

		Mason

		

		Skamania

		

		Whatcom

		



		Benton

		

		Ferry

		

		King

		

		Okanogan

		

		Snohomish

		

		Whitman

		



		Chelan

		

		Franklin

		

		Kitsap

		

		Pacific

		

		Spokane

		

		Yakima

		



		Clallam

		

		Garfield

		

		Kittitas

		

		Pend Orielle

		

		Stevens

		

		



		Clark

		

		Grant

		

		Klikittat

		

		Pierce

		

		Thurston

		

		



		Columbia

		

		Grays Harbor

		

		Lewis

		

		San Juan

		

		Wahkiakum

		

		





Federal Tax Identification Number: 







Bidder agrees to sell the goods and services on this contract to political subdivisions which are members of the State of Washington Purchasing Cooperative (WSPC): Yes___ No_____(If reply is “No” attach letter to this bid response explaining reason(s) for declining participation by political subdivisions).


Bidder agrees to sell the goods and services on this contract to political subdivisions and nonprofit organizations which are members of the State of Oregon Cooperative Purchasing Program (DASCPP/ORCPP ): Yes____ No____(If reply is “No” attach letter to this bid response explaining reason(s) for declining participation by these members)


If required, indicate percent increase to bid pricing for delivery to State of Oregon DASCPP/ORCPP  Members:  ____%


Attachment B

PRICE SHEETS


		CATEGORY 1 –COLLECTION SERVICES

		COLLECTION FEE



		A.
Financial

		



		· In-state, Regular

		_________________%



		· In state, Legal

		_________________%



		· Out of state, Regular

		_________________%



		· Out of state, Legal 

		_________________%



		Note: collection rates shall be for servicing accounts on a “state-wide” basis

		





· For evaluation purposes, the principal and collection amounts will be added together to arrive at one amount for all four examples.  The bidder (s) with the lowest total amount will receive the highest available financial evaluation points.  Please complete the following examples.


EXAMPLES:


(Show all work)


Premise:  This is a new account that is going into collections for the fist time.  At this point no collection efforts were conducted beyond agency's regular efforts.


· In-state, Regular


· $100 

client principal


· $______
collected amount based on collection rate listed above


· $______
Total money collected from client.  Collection fee represents ______% of total 

monies collected.


· In state, Legal

· $300 

client principal


· $______
collected amount based on collection rate listed above


· $______
Total money collected from client.  Collection fee  represents ______% of total 

monies collected


· Out of state, Regular

· $250 

client principal


· $______
collected amount based on collection rate listed above


· $______
Total money collected from client.  Collection fee  represents ______% of total 

monies collected


· Out of state, Legal

· $1,000

client principal


· $______
collected amount based on collection rate listed above


· $______

Total money collected from client.  Collection fee represents ______% of 


total monies collected.

Attachment C

PRICE SHEETS


		CATEGORY 2 – NSF CHECK COLLECTION SERVICES

		Collection fee



		A.
Financial

		



		· Collection fee per check collected

		$_____________



		· Collection fee per check collected-legal action (estimated to affect approximately 10% of assigned debts)

		$_____________



		

		





Attachment D


CATEGORY 1


LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING 


(DRAFT)


In accordance with the State of Washington Collection Services Contract #06204, and RCW 19.16.500, (state agency) and (credit collection company) both agree that the collection fee to be added to the principal balance of accounts assigned to (credit collection company) will be (%) of the principle amount owed, thereby enabling (credit collection company) to remit to (state agency) 100% of the principle amount assigned, when collected.


____ (state agency)______

_____(collection company)_____

By: ___________________
 By:_________________________


Title:_________________
Title:________________________


Attachment E


AUTOMATION



On Line Access/Internet




Yes_____ No_____



On Line Credit Reports




Yes_____ No_____



Real Time Information




Yes_____ No_____



Ability to submit account information online


Yes_____ No_____



Automated access to vendor’s date base to check accounts
Yes _____No______



1-800 number






Yes _____No______



In-state locations linked electronically for information 
Yes _____No______



accessibility and transfer


On-line Access to Accounts:


The user agencies may require inquiry access to the contractor’s case tracking and/or collection system to review status of all their accounts.  User agencies also require updated capability to respond to questions or disputes on accounts.  


While the contractor is welcome to provide such capabilities, it will not be required.  The contractor should be ready and willing to work with the user agencies to insure that an effective method of communication is established and perfected.  


Please provide your company’s on-line access capabilities available to user agencies:


Experience and Logistics


Number of years operating





____________________


Number of states in which agency collects directly w/o forwarding
____________________


Personnel


Number of collectors to be assigned to account


____________________


Legal Department:


1. In-house attorney (s)





____________________


2. Suit/garnishment process


3. Out of state suit/garnishment process



____________________

4. Management level staff for account

____________________

5. Customer representative (s) per state account

____________________


6. Collection manager (s) per state account

____________________










6
Bidder’s Company Name





_1044252346.doc
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